
 
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF PICTURE BUTTE TOWN COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
Monday, December 16th, 2024 at 6:30 pm 

 
1.0  CALL TO ORDER 

 
2.0  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
3.0  ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES 

 
3.1  Regular Council Meeting Minutes – November 25th, 2024 

 
4.0 PUBLIC HEARING  

 
4.1  

 
 
5.0 DELEGATION 
 

5.1 St/Sgt. Mike Numan – R.C.M.P. 
            

6.0 REQUESTS FOR DECISION 
 

6.1 RFD Returning Officer 
6.2 RFD 2025-2027 Interim Operating & Capital Budget 
6.3 Town of Coalhurst – Regional Meeting Request 
6.4  

 
7.0 MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
8.0 COUNCIL’S REPORT 
 
9.0 ADMINISTRATION’S REPORT 
 

9.1 Emergency Services Report 
 
 

10.0 CORRESPONDENCE 
 
10.1  

 



11.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

11.1 Food Cycle – Report Cards 
11.2 Oldman River Regional Services Commission – Christmas Card 
11.3 Barons-Eureka-Warner Family & Community Support Services – Board 

meeting minutes – November, 2024 
11.4 Office of the Minister – Successful application to the Community Facility 

Enhancement Program Grant 

12.0 CLOSED SESSION  

12.1 FOIP Act Division 2 Section 16 – Municipal Development Plan Costs 
12.2 FOIP Act Division 2 Section 16 – Tax incentive bylaw 
12.3 FOIP Act Division 2 Section 27 - Legal 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



Regular Council Meeting 
November 25th, 2024                        1               Mayor _______    CAO______ 

MINUTES 
OF THE 

PICTURE BUTTE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 
HELD IN 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
Monday, November 25th, 2024 AT 6:30 PM 

 
PRESENT: Mayor C. Moore          Deputy Mayor C. Papworth             Councillor T. Feist       
 Councillor H. de Kok   Councillor C. Neels  
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Chief Administrative Officer – K. Davis 
  Director of Corporate Services – M. Overbeeke 
  Municipal Enforcement Officer – R. Mosby 

Administrative Assistant – C. Johnson 
 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Moore called the Regular Council Meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 

 
2.0 ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

379 2411 25  MOVED by Councillor de Kok that the agenda be approved as presented. 
          CARRIED 

 
3.0 ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES 
 

3.1 Regular Council Meeting – November 12th, 2024 
 

380 2411 25  MOVED by Councillor Feist that the Regular Council Meeting minutes of 
November 12th, 2024 be approved as presented. 

          CARRIED 
 

4.0 PUBLIC HEARING – Aggressive Dog Appeal Hearing 
 

Municipal Enforcement Officer, Ryan Mosby, spoke to the Aggressive Dog 
Classification Appeal case. Monty Cahoon was issued a warning that an 
Aggressive Dog Classification could be imposed in February 2024 after the 
first incident was reported. Two more incidents were reported in September. 
At that time the Aggressive Dog Order was issued and conditions were 
imposed on Mr. Cahoon that included a shorter lead, not leaving the dog 
unattended when outside the home and to pay an aggressive dog license 
fee ($150). This fee was later reduced by Council to $75 for 2024. 
 
4.1 Submissions 

4.1.1 In Person Submissions 
4.1.1.1 Ask for Those in Favour 

 
Cheryl Garrat, one of the complainants, was present at the 
meeting to speak in favour of the Aggressive Dog Order.  
 
Marilyn Cortez, one of the complainants, was present at the 
meeting to speak in favour of the Aggressive Dog Order. 
 
Wayne Hawthorne, one of the complainants, was present at 
the meeting to speak in favour of the Aggressive Dog Order. 
 
4.1.1.2 Ask for Those Opposed 
 
Monty Cahoon and Alex Hann, the defendants, spoke in 
opposition of the Aggressive Dog Order.  

 
4.1.2 Written Submissions 

4.1.2.1 Ask for Those in Favour 
 
Marilyn Cortez submitted a letter in favour of the Aggressive 
Dog Order giving details to her encounters with Mr. Cahoon’s 
dog.  
 



Regular Council Meeting 
November 25th, 2024                        2               Mayor _______    CAO______ 

Wayne Hawthorne submitted a letter in favour of the 
Aggressive Dog Order outlining the need to keep the 
Community safe.  
 
4.1.2.2 Ask for Those Opposed 
 
Fawn Van Schothorst submitted a letter opposed to the 
Aggressive Dog Order outlining her non-aggressive run-ins 
with Mr. Cahoon’s dog. 
 

4.2 Adjourn the Public Hearing 
 
Mayor Moore adjourned the Aggressive Dog Classification Appeal 
Hearing at 7:11 p.m. 
 

  R. Mosby left the meeting at 7:11 p.m. 
 

5.0 DELEGATION  
     

5.1 Maddy From – Food Cycle Science 
 
Food Cycle Science is a Canadian company that focuses on food waste 
diversion services with Municipal partnerships. Household waste is 
composed of 25-50% of organic waste. That organic waste is 90% liquid 
mass and can be heavy in the trash. Organic waste also produces methane, 
which is 25 times more harmful than CO2. Reducing food waste means less 
collection and fewer trips to the collection site. In areas with animals, 
reducing food waste can deter animals from going through the garbage. 
Green bins are used in larger centres but have a major capital expenditure 
to process and collect the food waste. Contamination and participation rates 
are an ongoing issue. Backyard composting can be an option for those that 
have the space and expertise but can attract pests and animals. The Food 
Cycler is able to reduce food waste by 90%. The by-product is a dry, sterile, 
odourless & nutrient-rich fertilizer. The Food Cycler promotes increased 
awareness to food waste and how the environmental impact of the waste. 
The pilot programs have been very successful with 98% participation rates 
and 96% recommendation rates. On average each household throws out 40 
less bags of garbage each year when composting with the Food Cycler.  
 
The pilot program is 12 weeks long. Residents will purchase the Food Cycler 
from the Municipality as a subsidized cost and use it for a period of 12 
weeks. At the end of the period, the residents will provide their review of the 
product and a brief survey. The information gathered can be used in future 
organic waste diversion programs. Council agreed that this program 
sounded promising and  

 
381 2411 25 MOVED by Councillor Neels to direct Administration to have Food Cycle 

Science present the food waste presentation to the Lethbridge Regional 
Waste Management Commission.  

          CARRIED 
 

6.0 REQUESTS FOR DECISION 
 

6.1 Council Meeting Schedule 
 

382 2411 25 MOVED by Councillor Feist to cancel the December 9th and 23rd Regular 
Council meetings; cancel the December 16th Committee of the Whole 
meeting; schedule a Regular Council meeting on December 16th.  

         CARRIED 
 

6.2 Town Centennial Celebration 
 

383 2411 25 MOVED by Councillor Feist to declare 1926 as the date that Picture Butte 
was settled. 
        CARRIED 

    
 

 



Regular Council Meeting 
November 25th, 2024                        3               Mayor _______    CAO______ 

 
7.0 MAYOR’S REPORT  

 
7.1  Mayor’s Report 

 
   November 18   Attended a Committee of the Whole meeting 
   November 19  Attended a virtual meeting with Minister Dreeshen’s team  
   November 19  Attended a Lobbying for Piyami Lodge rebuild meeting 
 

384 2411 25   MOVED by Mayor Moore that the Mayor’s Report be accepted as presented. 
            CARRIED 

 
8.0 COUNCIL’S REPORT 

 
8.1 Council’s Report 
 
Councillor Feist advised Council of her recent activities: 
November 18   Attended a Committee of the Whole meeting 
November 21   Attended a Picture Butte History Committee meeting 
 
Councillor de Kok advised Council of his recent activities: 
November 18 Attended a Committee of the Whole meeting 
November 20 Attended a SouthGrow Economic Development webinar 
 
Deputy Mayor Papworth advised Council of her recent activities: 
November 18   Attended a Committee of the Whole meeting 
November 19   Attended a Lobbying for Piyami Lodge rebuild meeting 
November 21   Attended a Picture Butte History Committee meeting 
November 22   Attended a Green Acres Executive Board meeting 

 
Councillor Neels advised Council of her recent activities: 
November 16     Attended the Chinook Arch Library Extravaganza 
November 18    Attended a Committee of the Whole meeting 
November 19  Attended Picture Butte Library Board meeting 
November 20  Attended a SouthGrow Economic Development webinar 
 

385 2411 25 MOVED by Deputy Mayor Papworth that the Council Reports be accepted 
as presented. 
           CARRIED  

 
 

9.0 ADMINISTRATION’S REPORT  
 

9.1    CAO Report  
 

386 2411 25 MOVED by Councillor Neels to accept the CAO Report as presented. 
         CARRIED 
 

9.1.1 Director of Parks and Recreation Report 
 

387 2411 25 MOVED by Councillor Neels to accept the Director of Parks and 
Recreation Report as presented. 
       CARRIED 
 

388 2411 25 MOVED by Councillor de Kok to direct Administration to organize a 
meeting of the Intermunicipal Development Committee. 
       CARRIED 

 
10.0 CORRESPONDENCE  
 

10.1 SouthGrow – Letter of Support Request 
 

389 2411 25 MOVED by Councillor de Kok to receive and file SouthGrow - Letter of 
Support Request. 

         CARRIED 
 
 



Regular Council Meeting 
November 25th, 2024                        4               Mayor _______    CAO______ 

10.2 Alberta Irrigation Districts Association Letter re: Provincial Water 
Availability Engagement 

 
390 2411 25 MOVED by Councillor de Kok to receive and file Alberta Irrigation Districts 

Association Letter re: Provincial Water Availability Engagement. 
         CARRIED 
 
 

11.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
 

11.1 Shaughnessy Community Association – Thank you 
11.2 Oldman River Regional Services Commission – Executive Committee 

Meeting Minutes – October 2024 
 

391 2411 25 MOVED by Councillor Feist to receive and file Informational Items 11.1 - 
11.2. 

          CARRIED 
 
 

12.0 CLOSED SESSION  
 

12.1    FOIP Act Division 2 Section 20 – Aggressive Dog Classification 
Appeal  

12.2 FOIP Act Division 2 Section 22 - CUPE and Town of Picture Butte 
Memorandum of Settlement 
 

392 2411 25   MOVED by Deputy Mayor Papworth to close the meeting to the public in 
accordance with Division 2 Section 20 & 22 of the Freedom of Information 
and Protection of Privacy Act to discuss Aggressive Dog Classification 
Appeal and CUPE and Town of Picture Butte Memorandum of Settlement at 
8:10 p.m. 

            CARRIED 
 
393 2411 25   MOVED by Councillor Feist to open the meeting to the public at 8:51 p.m. 
            CARRIED 

  
394 2411 25  MOVED by Deputy Mayor Papworth that the Aggressive Dog Order for Milo, 

the Schnauzer dog owned by Monty Cahoon, be upheld until September 
2025, whereupon the Aggressive Dog order will be reassessed. Further, that 
the $200 appeal fee be applied to the 2024 and 2025 Aggressive Dog 
licence fees (2024 - $75, 2025 - $150) and to waive the remaining, 
outstanding amount of $25.  
        CARRIED  
 
C. Johnson left the meeting at 8:32 p.m. 

 
395 2411 25  MOVED by Councillor de Kok to accept the CUPE and Town of Picture 

Butte Memorandum of Settlement with the exception of section 17.01(h). 
           CARRIED 

 
13.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 
The next Regular Council Meeting is scheduled for December 16th, 2024 
beginning at 6:30 p.m. 
 

396 2411 25 MOVED by Councillor Neels that the Regular Council Meeting adjourn at 
9:00 p.m. 

         CARRIED 
 

   
 
 
 
 
             
Cathy Moore       Keith Davis 
Mayor        Chief Administrative Officer 



 

   

November 12, 2024 
  
Keith Davis 
CAO – Town of Picture Butte, Alberta. 
 
Dear Mr. Davis, 
 
Please find attached the quarterly Community Policing Report attached that covers the 
July 1st to September 30th, 2024 reporting period. The attached report serves to provide 
a quarterly snapshot of human resources, financial data, and crime statistics for the 
Picture Butte Detachment. 
 
This quarter I want to update you on the status of the Body Worn Camera (BWC) rollout, 
which will be starting this month. We will be conducting Province-wide media releases in 
mid-November that will include a demonstration of the new BWC along with an update 
on the Alberta RCMP deployment plan. As the deployment of BWCs to each detachment 
will take approximately 12-18 months, I will reach out to inform you of when you are 
expected to receive it. Shortly before the deployment of BWCs in our communities, I will 
also ensure there is communication locally so that residents are aware of this new piece 
of equipment being used by our officers.  
 
I also want to let you know about the RCMP Public Consultation Tool that is anticipated 
to be launched in early 2025.  This initiative is being launched in order to solicit feedback 
from RCMP stakeholders with the goal of increasing transparency in policing and 
contribute to our vision of becoming an inherently open RCMP.  This public consultation 
tool will be secure and confidential for all participants who will remain anonymous.  I 
encourage your engagement in this process and if you would like more information, you 
can contact the Open Government Office at EnterpriseTransparency-
Transparenceauseindelorganisation@rcmp-grc.gc.ca  
 
I always remain available to discuss your community-identified policing priorities and/or 
any ideas you may have that will enhance our service delivery to address the priorities 
that are important to you. As the Chief of Police for your community, I invite you to 
contact me should you have any questions or concerns. 
 
 
 
 
S/Sgt. Mike Numan 
Chief of Police 
Coaldale-Picture Butte RCMP Detachment 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 - Page 1 of 5 - 

Alberta RCMP – Provincial Policing Report 

Detachment Information 
Detachment Name 
Picture Butte 

Detachment Commander 
S/Sgt. Mike Numan 
 

Report Date 
November 12, 2024 
 

Fiscal Year 
2024-25 

Quarter 
Q2 (July - September) 

Community Priorities 
  

Priority #1:  Traffic - Safety (motor vehicles, roads) 

Updates and Comments: 
There was a notable increase in traffic enforcement during this quarter due to enhanced proactive 
patrols by the membership. There were 2 IRs suspensions issued during this quarter. Due to resource 
issues, there were no JFO's completed during this quarter. We anticipate the shortfall will be made up 
over the holiday season with some joint check stops initiatives planned. 

  
Priority #2:  Police / Community Relations - Police Visibility 

Updates and Comments: 
There were 8-foot patrols completed during this quarter as well as two bike patrols in the rural areas. 
Also, this quarter was very successful for community events and interactions as we recorded 46 events 
again.  We are far exceeding this target and have great relationships with all our communities.  The 
Detachment is well on its way to meeting our Detachment proactive policing target for the year.  

  
Priority #3:  Intelligence led policing - Crime prevention 

Updates and Comments: 
Coaldale RCMP continues to participate in monthly intelligence sharing meetings with SAD-CRU, local 
RCMP, and local Municipal Police Services. This networking of information continues to aid in the 
tracking and charging of prolific offenders that consistently cross jurisdictional lines. Coaldale RCMP 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 - Page 2 of 5 - 

continues to participate in the high-risk youth crown meetings at LPS, but have not attended any 
meetings over the summer. Meetings will continue in the upcoming quarter. This quarter has seen 
officers attend resource fairs to educate the public and are back liaising with schools at the start of the 
school year.  

  



  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 - Page 3 of 5 - 

Community Consultations 
 

Consultation #1   

Date Meeting Type 

August 17, 2024 Community Connection 

Topics Discussed 

Picture Butte Jamboree Days 

Notes/Comments: 

RCMP members lead Jamboree Days Parade and had a presence in the community during the entire 
weekend for the event.  Lots of interaction with youth and parents that was well received. 

  
Consultation #2   

Date Meeting Type 

September 9, 2024 Meeting with Elected Officials 

Topics Discussed 

Regular Reporting/Information Sharing; Youth 

Notes/Comments: 

Detachment Member attended the Picture Butte town council meeting to provide a report on Quarter 1 
crime statistics. Provided update and answer questions and inquiries. Great conversation and positive 
meeting. 

  
Consultation #3   

Date Meeting Type 

September 26, 2024 Community Connection 

Topics Discussed 

Education Session; Regular Reporting/Information Sharing 

Notes/Comments: 

Two members attended the Picture Butte High School for the Community Resource Fair. We had a table 
and handed out resource materials, answered questions, and took part in general conversations with the 
community.  Our table had approximately 30 people attend. Very positive and great initiative. 

  



  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 - Page 4 of 5 - 

Crime Statistics 
The following table provides policing statistics on actual offences within the periods listed. Please see the 
Appendix for additional information and a five-year comparison. 

Category 
July - September January - December 

2023 2024 % Change 
YoY 2022 2023 % Change 

YoY 

Total Criminal Code 94 36 - 62% 303 257 - 15% 

Persons Crime 26 3 - 88% 59 57 - 3% 

Property Crime 51 25 - 51% 171 163 - 5% 

Other Criminal Code 17 8 - 53% 73 37 - 49% 

Drugs Offences 0 0 N/A 1 0 - 100% 

Total Federal Acts 2 1 - 50% 4 3 -25% 

Total Provincial Acts 4 21 16 - 24% 108 78 - 28% 

Municipal By-Laws 2 5 + 150% 13 5 - 62% 

Motor Vehicle Collisions 25 11 - 56% 106 112 + 6% 

Total Traffic Offences 56 36 - 36% 371 276 - 26% 

Provincial Code Traffic 53 36 - 32% 367 269 - 27% 

Criminal Code Traffic 2 0 - 100% 3 5 + 67% 

Other Traffic 1 0 - 100% 1 2 + 100% 

Notes:  
1. Data is extracted from a live database (PROS) and is subject to change over time. 
2. Statistics for the July - September period reflect RCMP records as of October 8, 2024.  
3. Full-year statistics reflect RCMP records as of January 5, 2024. 
4. “Total Provincial Acts” include records of non-offence activities that are undertaken by Detachment 

members, in addition to actual offences under various provincial acts. Non-offence activities may include 
activities under the Mental Health Act, Coroners Act, and other provincial legislation in Alberta. 

 
Trends / Points of Interest 
Coaldale-Picture Butte Detachment members continue to do an excellent job dealing with our habitual 
offenders this past quarter which has resulted in a decrease almost all categories above. We will 
continue to work with our partner agencies and crime reduction teams to target these repeat offenders.  
We will continue to have a strong presence in the community and surrounding rural areas. 
 
 

 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 - Page 5 of 5 - 

Provincial Service Composition 

Staffing Category Established 
Positions 

Working Soft Vacancies Hard Vacancies 

Regular Members 5 3 2 0 

Detachment Support 2 2 0 0 

Notes: 
1. Data extracted on September 27, 2024 and is subject to change. 
2. Soft Vacancies are positions that are filled but vacant due to maternity/paternity leave, medical leave, etc. 

and are still included in the overall FTE count. 
3. Hard Vacancies reflect positions that do not have an employee attached and need to be filled. 

 
Comments: 
Police Officers: Of the five established positions, three officers are currently working. There are three 
officers on special leave (three Medical leave) and one of these positions is backfilled to ensure 
coverage. There is one position with two officers assigned to that position. There is no hard vacancy at 
this time. 
 
Detachment Support: Of the two established positions, two resources are currently working with none 
on special leave. There is no hard vacancy at this time. 

 



CATEGORY Trend 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
% Change 

2020 - 2024

% Change 

2023 - 2024

Avg File +/- 

per Year

     Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Drug Enforcement - Possession 1 0 1 0 0 -100% N/A -0.2

     Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Drug Enforcement - Other 1 0 0 0 0 -100% N/A -0.2

Total Drugs 2 0 1 0 0 -100% N/A -0.4

     Cannabis Enforcement 0 1 1 0 0 N/A N/A -0.1

     Federal - General 3 1 2 2 1 -67% -50% -0.3

TOTAL FEDERAL 5 2 4 2 1 -80% -50% -0.8

     Liquor Act 0 1 1 0 0 N/A N/A -0.1

     Cannabis Act 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Mental Health Act 11 9 7 9 7 -36% -22% -0.8

     Other Provincial Stats 23 21 18 12 9 -61% -25% -3.7

Total Provincial Stats 34 31 26 21 16 -53% -24% -4.6

     Municipal By-laws Traffic 3 0 2 0 0 -100% N/A -0.6

     Municipal By-laws 2 8 3 2 5 150% 150% 0.0

Total Municipal 5 8 5 2 5 0% 150% -0.6

     Fatals 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Injury MVC 8 3 4 5 1 -88% -80% -1.2

     Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 17 15 18 19 6 -65% -68% -1.8

     Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) 3 1 3 1 4 33% 300% 0.2

TOTAL MVC 28 19 25 25 11 -61% -56% -2.8

     Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) 0 1 1 1 0 N/A -100% 0.0

     Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

Total Provincial Traffic 282 187 100 53 36 -87% -32% -62.6

Other Traffic 1 0 0 1 0 -100% -100% -0.1

Criminal Code Traffic 1 1 1 2 0 -100% -100% -0.1

Common Police Activities

     False Alarms 4 8 10 6 1 -75% -83% -0.8

     False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 22 22 23 27 18 -18% -33% -0.3

     Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 26 16 15 17 11 -58% -35% -2.9

     Persons Reported Missing 3 3 2 0 1 -67% N/A -0.7

     Search Warrants 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Spousal Abuse - Survey Code (Reported) 9 7 9 14 3 -67% -79% -0.5

     Form 10 (MHA) (Reported) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

Picture Butte Provincial Detachment

Crime Statistics (Actual)

July to September: 2020 - 2024
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" October 8, 2024



CATEGORY Trend 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
% Change 

2020 - 2024

% Change 

2023 - 2024

Avg File +/- 

per Year

     Offences Related to Death 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Robbery 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Sexual Assaults 2 1 1 4 0 -100% -100% -0.1

     Other Sexual Offences 1 0 0 1 0 -100% -100% -0.1

     Assault 7 6 4 17 2 -71% -88% 0.1

     Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 1 0 0 0 0 -100% N/A -0.2

     Extortion 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Criminal Harassment 4 3 3 3 0 -100% -100% -0.8

     Uttering Threats 5 5 5 1 1 -80% 0% -1.2

TOTAL PERSONS 20 15 13 26 3 -85% -88% -2.3

     Break & Enter 5 7 8 14 0 -100% -100% -0.3

     Theft of Motor Vehicle 4 19 10 8 4 0% -50% -1.1

     Theft Over $5,000 4 1 0 2 0 -100% -100% -0.7

     Theft Under $5,000 21 20 12 4 5 -76% 25% -4.8

     Possn Stn Goods 2 5 4 3 7 250% 133% 0.8

     Fraud 6 4 7 7 3 -50% -57% -0.3

     Arson 0 1 0 0 0 N/A N/A -0.1

     Mischief - Damage To Property 11 7 9 4 2 -82% -50% -2.1

     Mischief - Other 5 9 5 9 4 -20% -56% -0.2

TOTAL PROPERTY 58 73 55 51 25 -57% -51% -8.8

     Offensive Weapons 2 1 0 3 0 -100% -100% -0.2

     Disturbing the peace 11 3 7 8 3 -73% -63% -1.1

     Fail to Comply & Breaches 9 4 7 2 2 -78% 0% -1.6

     OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 2 3 4 4 3 50% -25% 0.3

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 24 11 18 17 8 -67% -53% -2.6

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 102 99 86 94 36 -65% -62% -13.7

Picture Butte Provincial Detachment

Crime Statistics (Actual)

July to September: 2020 - 2024
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" October 8, 2024



REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
Date: December 09, 2024 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: Director of Corporate Services 
 
Re:  Returning Officer 
 
Background:  
 
The Returning Officer is responsible to do all necessary tasks to conduct an election.  They will give notice of 
election, give notice of nominations, receive nominations, supply of the voting station, declare acclamations, 
delivery of ballots, ballot boxes, instructions to electors and other necessary supplies to the voting station. 
 
 
Recommendation Options: 
 

1) THAT Council appoint Michelle Overbeeke as the Returning Officer and Keith Davis as the Deputy 
Returning Officer.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by:                    
Michelle Overbeeke, CPA CMA  
Director of Corporate Services       

Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency. 

   



 
Request for Decision 

 

 
 
Date: 16 December, 2024 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: Director of Corporate Services 
 
Re: 2025-2027 Interim Operating Budget 
 
Background: 
 
The 2024 - 2026 budget was approved at the March 3, 2024 regular Council meeting. 
 
The 2025 budget presentations will occur February 2025.  The 2025 – 2027 budget will be passed in 
March 2025. The budget information will be brought back when we have confirmation of assessment and 
requisitions so that the mill rate can be set for the year. 
 
With the 2024 – 2026 already being approved by Council we can use this information for the interim 
2025 budget information that is already in place. 

 
 
Recommendation:  
 
That Council approve, or give direction to amend the 2025 interim operating & capital budget that was 
originally approved March 3, 2024 with the understanding that changes will be made in February 2025 
when the new budget is presented to Council. 
 
 
Submitted by:                    
Michelle Overbeeke,  CPA CMA  
Director of Corporate Services  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Our Vision:      Providing sustainable growth that results in a safe, vibrant and inclusive 
community while embracing our heritage. 
Our Mission:   By serving Picture Butte, Town Council will continually strive to ensure a 
thriving and vibrant community that improves the lives of Town Residents. 
 

   



 

 
  
 100 51 Avenue PO Box 456, Coalhurst, AB T0L 0V0 

Ph: (403) 381-3033          www.coalhurst.ca 

 

November 28, 2024  

Mayor and Council 
Town of Picture Butte 
120 4 Street North 
Picture Butte, Alberta  
 
Via email: keith@picturebutte.ca 
 
 
Subject: Regional Council Workshop Invitation 
 
Dear Mayor Moore and Council: 
 
The Town of Coalhurst Council would like to warmly invite the Town of Picture Butte 
Council and other small-municipality councils and CAOs in the region to an informal 
workshop, to discuss common issues and goals. We believe this networking opportunity 
will help strengthen our relationships, affirm our regional priorities, and allow us to shape 
our collective voice, thereby strengthening our advocacy efforts.    
 
We propose a mutually convenient Wednesday to discuss matters over dinner that 
Coalhurst will host from 6:00 – 9:00 p.m. on any of the following dates in the new year: 
 

• January 15, 22, or 29 
• February 5, 12, 19, or 26 

 
Once a date has been confirmed, we will select a venue to host our gathering which will 
likely be in Coalhurst or Lethbridge, depending on attendance numbers. We ask that you 
please provide us with your top three preferred dates from the bullets above, ranking them 
in preference from first to third. We recognize the challenges of choosing a date that works 
for most and will do our best to accommodate everyone so that this important event can 
occur.  
 
We also welcome your municipality to submit agenda items that your Council would like to 
discuss. A proposed agenda with Coalhurst’s suggested agenda items is included in this 
letter for your consideration.  
 
In addition, we recognize the authority of decision making that each Council has and 
accordingly suggest that this workshop be focused on discussing matters and finding 
common ground and initiatives that support us all. Any final decisions would be made by a 



 

 
  
 100 51 Avenue PO Box 456, Coalhurst, AB T0L 0V0 

Ph: (403) 381-3033          www.coalhurst.ca 

motion of your Council following the workshop. Processes and parameters for future 
intergovernmental meetings can be discussed and formalized at the first meeting.  
 
We ask that you please respond by no later than Friday, December 20th including the 
number of attendees expected, so that we can make the appropriate arrangements. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Mayor Lyndsay Montina 
Town of Coalhurst  
 
cc:  Coalhurst Town Council 
 Karlene Betteridge, Chief Administrative Officer, Coalhurst 
 Lethbridge County Council 
 Barons Village Council 
 Nobleford Town Council 
 
 
 
  



 

 
  
 100 51 Avenue PO Box 456, Coalhurst, AB T0L 0V0 

Ph: (403) 381-3033          www.coalhurst.ca 

 North of the Oldman River  
Intergovernmental Workshop  

 
Proposed Agenda 

 
 

1. Call to order 
2. Land acknowledgement statement 
3. Welcome and roundtable introductions 
4. Procedures and parameters 
5. Intergovernmental matters and projects for consideration 

a. A local regional economic development initiative  
b. Regional projects  

i. Pathway  
ii. Cemeteries 

c. Regional advocacy 
i. Physician and general practitioner attraction and retention 
ii. Highschool or educational matters 
iii. Piyami Lodge  

d. Cost sharing agreements between municipalities 
e. Garbage services 
f. Intermunicipal public transportation  

6. Joint advocacy efforts with the provincial government  
7. Adjournment  

 
 



 
Memorandum 

 

 
 
Date: December 13, 2024 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: Director of Emergency Services 
 
RE: Emergency Services Report – November 2024 
 

 Year-to-Date Emergency Events (Jan-Nov) 
Fire Medical Motor Vehicle Collisions Total 

Town County Other Town Other Town County  
25 79 12 287 523 4 23 953 

 
Fire Services 
 
Fire crews responded to 23 events in November including 2 motor vehicle collisions, 1 alarms, 3 
structure fires, 4 tender assists, 1 vehicle fire and 11 medical emergencies. We had three of our 
members complete their basic technical rescue training in November after passing the NFPA 
1006 Technical Rescue Awareness course on November 9th. Then, on November 10, 2024 our 
Technical Rescue Team was called to assist Coaldale & District Emergency Services with 
removing a patient involved in a vehicle rollover in the coulees. 
 

 
Our Technical Rescue Team members putting their rope training to work in the coulees! 

 

Our Vision:       Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County. 
Our Mission:    Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency. 
 

   



Emergency Medical Services 
 
Our EMS crews responded to 43 medical events in November. On November 19, 2024 we 
received notification from Accreditation Canada that we successful in maintaining our Accredited 
status. I would like to again congratulate our staff on the hard work in maintaining our 
commitment to quality improvement with accreditation.  
 
Bylaw Services 
 
Officer Mosby performs regular daily patrols of Picture Butte to actively monitor for bylaw 
compliance. Bylaw Services has been engaged in summer enforcement activities including weeds, 
unsightly properties, trailer parking, and campground patrols. There are currently 4 of the 10 
allocated Urban Hen Licenses issued in town.  
 

2024 Bylaw Enforcement Files  
 September October November Year-to-date 

Totals 
Trend 

*Compared to 2023 

Dog Control Bylaw 3 2 7 43 files 93% (46)  
Traffic Bylaw 10 8 7 65 files 104% (62)  
Noise Bylaw  - 1 - 1 file 100% (1)  
Unsightly Premises 
Bylaw  

4 1 36 138 files 191% (72)  

Public Information 1 1 3 10 files 77% (13)  
Business License Bylaw - - - 12 files 109% (11)  
Animal Regulation  - - - 1 file 100% (1)  
Fire Protection Bylaw  - - - 1 file 200% (0) 
Utility Bylaw - - - - 0% (1)  
Land Use Bylaw - - - - 0% (1)  
Urban Hen Bylaw 1 - - 7 files 47% (15)  
Parks & Campground 
Bylaw 

2 4 - 13 files *New 

Total 21 files 17 files 53 files 300 files 135% (223) 
Development Files 9 files 18 files 10 files 179 files 158% (113) 

 
Emergency Management 
 
Lethbridge County has hired Brea Tamminga for the position of Regional Emergency 
Management Coordinator. The next steps for the Regional Emergency Management project 
involving finalizing our Regional Emergency Management Plan and through the Regional 
Coordinator organizing the governance meetings of the Regional Emergency Advisory 
Committee and operational trainings with the Regional Emergency Management Agency. 
 
Submitted by: Frank West, Director of Emergency Services 



 

 

 
 
 
 
November 19, 2024 
 
 
Keith Davis 
Chief Administrative Officer 
Picture Butte Emergency Services 
120 4th Street N., P.O. Box 670 
Picture Butte, Albera T0K 1V0 
 
 
Subject:  Award - Your October 2024 Survey 
 
 
Dear Keith Davis: 
 
The Accreditation Decision Committee (ADC) has granted Picture Butte Emergency Services 
the award of Accredited under the Qmentum accreditation program. Your accreditation report 
can be found on your client organization portal. This is a milestone to be celebrated, and we 
congratulate you and your team for your commitment to providing safe, high quality health 
services.  
 
However, submission of evidence for designated unmet criteria and Required Organizational 
Practices (ROPs) is required within specified timelines to maintain your status. The lists below 
provide details on the unmet criteria which require further evidence from your organization. 
Please submit the requested evidence of compliance via your Quality Performance Roadmap 
located on the client organization portal by May 26, 2025. 
 
Required Organizational Practices (ROPs) Tests for Compliance Requiring Follow-up: 
 

• Leadership Standards for Small, Community-Based Organizations (10.9.1), (14.1.4), 
(14.4.1), (14.4.2), (14.10.1), (14.10.2), (14.10.3) 

 
Criteria Requiring Follow-up: 
 

• Leadership Standards for Small, Community-Based Organizations (3.4) 
 
Once you have submitted the evidence, we may request more information from your 
organization to complete the review. You will receive a decision letter within thirty (30) business 
days from the evidence submission due date. 
 
We at Accreditation Canada are pleased to work with you on your quality improvement efforts 
and look forward to continuing to provide you with guidance and support. 
 



  … / 2 
 

If you have any questions or would like to discuss your next steps, feel free to contact Bozena 
Michalik, Client Engagement Coordinator, at 1-647-264-1327, or by email at 
bozena.michalik@accreditation.ca. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kyle Kemp, PhD 
Chair, Accreditation Decision Committee 
 
c.c.: Captain Justin Chronik, EMS Team Lead 
 Frank West, Fire Chief 



99% 90% 78%

4.5 Star Average Rating
participating households in
Drayton Valley100

There were

TONNES 14.5 metric tonnes of food
waste diverted per year

are now
more aware
of their food

waste

What Your Neighbours Say

Congratulations on completing a successful 12-week FoodCycler Pilot Program! Drayton
Valley is among the 120+ municipal partners that have implemented the FoodCycler as a
trusted food waste solution and shown its commitment to a sustainable future. 

Interested in purchasing a
FoodCycler for your home?

will continue
to use their
FoodCycler

After using the unit, I could not believe
how much waste previously went into the
garbage“

“
– RESIDENT

– RESIDENT

would
recommend

a FoodCycler
to others

What you diverted

garbage bags per  
household annually. 
Your local landfill thanks you!

15.3

WITH THIS AMOUNT OF WASTE DIVERTED,
YOU ARE SAVING

FoodCycler™ Pilot 

I will continue to use this machine past
the pilot program. The machine is simple
and stress free. It was a very easy
transition from my previous routine

18.9 metric tonnes of CO2
emissions diverted per year

gasoline-powered vehicles
off the road annually4.2

WITH THIS AMOUNT OF C02E DIVERTED,
YOU TAKE THE EQUIVALENT OF

Visit:
https://www.draytonvalley.ca
/foodcycler-pilot-project/



99% 96% 68%

4.7 Star Average Rating
participating households in
the Township of North
Kawartha’s pilot program.

200
There were

TONNES 55.35 metric tonnes of food
waste diverted per year

are now more
motivated to

waste less
food.

What Your Neighbours Say

Congratulations on completing a successful FoodCycler Pilot Program! The Township of
North Kawarth is among the 150+ municipal partners that have implemented the
FoodCycler as a trusted food waste solution and shown its commitment to a sustainable
future. 

will continue
to use their
FoodCycler

This has been great.  We could not compost due to
attracting bears, etc., but now we can and spread it on
our gardens. Thanks for the opportunity.”“

“
– RESIDENT

– RESIDENT

would
recommend

a FoodCycler
to others

What you diverted

garbage bags per  
household annually. 
Your local landfill thanks you!

20.26

WITH THIS AMOUNT OF WASTE DIVERTED,
YOU ARE SAVING

FoodCycler™ Pilot 

Wonderful for keeping smelly waste out of the
garbage do we don’t have animal issues with our
garbage pick up!

71.95 metric tonnes of CO2
emissions diverted per year

acres of forest each year!84

THIS IS THE EQUIVALENT TO THE
CARBON SEQUESTERED BY

Interested in purchasing a
FoodCycler for your home?

Reach out to your municipality for more
information!

“
– RESIDENT

I would highly recommend the FoodCycler. We are a
water-access cottage with lots of family and friends
and this greatly reduced the green waste that we
brought to the landfill - reduced by 100%.



100% 92% 78%

4.7 Star Average Rating
participating households in
the Ritchot pilot program.100

There were

TONNES 26.5 metric tonnes of food
waste diverted per year

are now
more aware
of their food

waste

What Your Neighbours Say

Congratulations on completing a successful 12-week FoodCycler Pilot Program! Ritchot is
among the 150 municipal partners that have implemented the FoodCycler as a trusted
food waste solution and shown its commitment to a sustainable future. 

will continue
to use their
FoodCycler

“Really love it and will continue to regularly use! So
thankful for this program!”

“

“

– RESIDENT

– RESIDENT

would
recommend

a FoodCycler
to others

What you diverted

garbage bags per  
household annually. 
Your local landfill thanks you!

41.6

WITH THIS AMOUNT OF WASTE DIVERTED,
YOU ARE SAVING

FoodCycler™ Pilot 

We love our FoodCycler and use it very often. It feels
great not putting all that waste into the garbage and
we've reduced our garbage by at least half. 

34.4 metric tonnes of CO2
emissions diverted per year

acres of forest each year!40.2

THIS IS THE EQUIVALENT TO THE
CARBON SEQUESTERED BY

Interested in purchasing a
FoodCycler for your home?

Reach out to your municipality to request
participation in future pilot rounds. 

A great initiative. Appreciated learning and participating.
Thanks to all those at the RM for offering this opportunity
at a reduced rate.”“

– RESIDENT



1

Keith Davis

From: ORRSC Administration <admin@orrsc.com>

Sent: Friday, November 29, 2024 8:59 AM

Subject: Merry Christmas & Happy New Year From ORRSC!
















































































	2024 12 16 Agenda
	3.1 2024 11 25 Minutes
	5.1a Q2 2024 Picture Butte Community Letter
	5.1b Q2 2024 Picture Butte Provincial Community Report
	Alberta RCMP – Provincial Policing Report
	Detachment Information
	Community Priorities
	Priority #1:  Traffic - Safety (motor vehicles, roads)
	Priority #2:  Police / Community Relations - Police Visibility
	Priority #3:  Intelligence led policing - Crime prevention

	Community Consultations
	Consultation #1
	Consultation #2
	Consultation #3

	Crime Statistics
	Provincial Service Composition


	5.c Picture Butte Q2 Provincial Crime Statistics
	6.1 RFD Returning Officer
	6.2 RFD 2025-2027 Interim Operating & Capital Budget Documentation
	6.3 Invitation letter for regional meeting Picture Butte
	9.1 Emergency Services Report
	9.1a PICBA Decision Letter
	11.1 Food Cycle Report Cards
	Drayton Valley Report Card
	North Kawartha Report Card
	Richot Report Card

	11.2 ORRSC Christmas Card
	11.3 BEW FCSS Board Minutes
	11.4 Office of the Minster - CFEP Grant
	11.5 Alternative Water Sources and Wastewater Reuse



